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Annual Report of Holding Companies—FR Y-6

Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year

This Report is required by law: Section 5(c}{1){A} of the Bank
Holding Company Act (12 U.5.C. § 1844(c}{1}(A)); sections 8{a)
and 13{a) of the International Banking Act {12 10.5.C. §§ 3106(a)
and 3108(a)); sections 11(a)(1), 25, and 26A of the Federal
Resarve Act (12 U.5.C. §§ 248(a){1), 602, and 611a); and sec-
tions 113, 165, 312, 618, and 809 of the Dodd-Frank Act (12 U.5.C.
§§ 5361, 5365, 5412, 1850a(c)(1), and 5468B(b)(1)). Return to the
appropriate Faderal Reserve Bank the ariginal and the number of
copies specified,

This report form is o be filed by all top-tier bank holding compa-
nies, top-tier savings and loan holding companies, and U.S. inter-
mediate holding companies organized under U.S. law, and by
any foreign banking organizafion that does not meet the require-
ments of and is not treated as a qualifying fareign banking orga-
nization under Section 211.23 of Regulation K (12 CFR. §
211.23). {See page one of the general instructions for more detail
of who must file.) The Federal Resarve may not conduct or spon-
sor, and an organization {or & person} is not required to respond
o, an information collection unless it displays a currently valid
QMB control number.

NOTE: The Annual Raport of Holding Campanies must be signed by
one director of the top-tier hoiding company. This individual should
also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. (n the event
that the top-tier holding company does not have an individual who is
a senior official and is also a director, the chairman of the board must
sign the report. 1If the holding company is an ESOP/ESOT formed as
a corporation or is an LLC, see the General Instructions for the
authorized individual who must sign the report

I.Nicholas M, Christ

Name of the Holding Company Director and Official

President, CEQ and Trustee

Tithe of tha Holding Company Director and Official
attest that the Annual Report of Holding Companies (including
the supporting attachments) for this roport date has been pre-
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Federal
Reserve System and are true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

With respect to infarmation regarding individuals contained In this
raport, the Reporter certifias that it has the authornity to provide this
information to the Federal Reserve. The Repeorer alsv cerdifies
that it has the authority, on bahalf of each individual, to consent or
object fo public refease of information regarding that individial
The Federa! Reserve may assume, in the absence of a requast for
confidential trealment sulynited in accordance with the Board's
"Rufes Regarding Avajidbility oNinformation,” 12 C.FR. Par 261,
that the Reporter grd individualcopsent to public release of alt
Wg thit individual

i
Signaiure of Hﬂ!’din{ Comy Dlreftor and Official
03/23/2018 M
Cate of Signature

Date of Report {top-tier holding company’s fiscal year-end):
December 31, 2017

Honih ¢ Day ! Year

5493000 TLWFQPOOSCA46
Reporter's Legal Enlity identifier (LEI) (20-Charactar LEI Code}

Reporter's Name, Street, and Mailing Address

Narragansett Financial Corp.

Lagal Tille of Helding Company

330 Swansea Mall Drive

(Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Street/ P.C. Box
Swansea MA,

City State

02777

Zip Code

Physical Location {if diffarent from mailing address)

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed:
Phillip J. Camevale SVP & CFo
Name Tille
508-675-4463

Area Code / Phone Number / Extension
508-675-4343

Area Code / FAX, Number
pcarnevale@baycoastbank.com

E-mail Address

www.baycoastbank.com

Address (URL} for the Helding Company's web page

For holding companies pot registered with the SEC-
indicale status of Annual Reporl to Sharaholders:

is included willt Ihe FR Y-8 raport

[J wil be sent under separale cover

[1 i not prepared

For Federal Reserve Bank Use Onily

262343
RSSDID

C.L

Is confidential treatment requested for any portion of  |9=N0
this reparl submission? ..........co.ooonn [12Yes| D J
I accordance with the General Insiructions for this report
(check only one),
1. aletter justifying this request! is being provided atong
withthereport ... il

2. aielier justifying |his request has been provided separately ... D

NOTE: information for which confidentiat treatment is belng requested
must be provided separately and labeted
as "confidential."

Public reporting burden for this informalion collectlon is estimated to vary from 1.2 to 101 hours per rasponse, with an average of 5.50 hours per fesponse, incluging tme lo gather and
maintain data In the reguired form and 10 revisw Instruclions and completa the informalion collection. Send comments regarding this bujden estimale or any olher aspect of 1his collection of
information, [nctuding suggestions for reducing this burden to: Secrelary, Board of Govamnars af tha Federal Reserve Sysiem, 20th and G Sweets, NW, Washington, 8C 20551, and lo the

Difice of Managament and Budget, Paperwork Raduction Prolect {7100-0297), washinglon, DC 20503,

03/2018
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For Use By Tiered Holding Companies

Top-tiered hoiding companies must iist the names, mailing address, and physical localions of each of their subsidiary hoiding companies

below.

BayCoast Bank

Lapal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

330 Swansea Mall Drive

Lagai Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subaidiary Holding Comnpany) Streef ! P.O. Box

Swansea MA, Q2777

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiaty Hoiding Company} Sireet / P.Q, Box

City State Zip Code

Glty Slale Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Physicai Locatien {f different from mailing address}

Lagel Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

Legat Tile of Subsidiary Holding Company

{Maiing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Sireet 7 PO, Box

{Mafing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Sireet / P.O. Box

City State Zip Code

Clty Statm Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from malling address}

Physical Location {if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

{Mafing Agdraas of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / 7.0, Box

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Sireet / P.O. Box

City 7 State Zip Code

Physical Lacation (it different from mailing address}

City State Zip Code

Pﬁ;l;:-al Lacation (if difarent from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

Lepal Tille of Subsidiary Holding Company

{Maling Address of the Subsidiary Helding Company) Street / P.O. Box

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Ccfnpany} Streel ! 3

Clty State Zip Cede

Gity State " ZipCods

Physical Location (f differant from mailing address)

Physkal Location (if different from mailing address)

1212012
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Audit Committee of
Narragansett Financial Corp.

We have audited Narragansett Financial Corp.’s ( the “Company™) internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria established in the /nternal Control—
Integrated Framework (2013), issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for designing, implementing, and maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assessment about the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the entity’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects.

An audit of internal control over financial reporting involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about whether a material weakness exists. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks that a material weakness exists. An
audit includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
based on the assessed risk.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

S S = = S =—aersssseseeanme)
MEMBER OF ALLINIAL GLOBAL 98 HIGH STREET BOSTON, MA 02110-2320 P 617-439-9700
AN ASSOCIATION OF LEGALLY INDEPENDENT FIRMS WOLFANDCO COM



Definition and Inherent Limitations of Internal Conirol Over Financial Reporting

An entity’s internal control over financial reporting is a process effected by those charged with
governance, management, and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the preparation of reliable financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Because management’s
assessment and our audil were conducted to meet the reporting requirements of Section 112 of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Curporation Improvement Act (FDICIA), our audit of Narragansett
Financial Corp.’s internal control over financial reporting included controls over the preparation
of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America and with the instructions to the Consolidated Financial Statements for Bank
Holding Companies (Form FR Y-9C) and to the Federal Financial Institutions Examination
Council Instruetions for Censolidated Reports of Condition and Income. An entity’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the entity; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial staternents in accordance with accounting
principles penerally accepted in the United States of America, and that receipts and expenditures
of the entity are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and those
charged with governance; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention, or timely
detection and cortection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the enlity's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent, or
detect and cotrect, misstatements. Also, projections of any assessment of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may becoine inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opirion

In our opinion, Narragansett Financial Corp. maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria established in
the Infernal Control—Integrated Framework (2013), issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

Report on Financial Statements

We also have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, the December 31, 2017 consolidated financial statements of Narragansett
Financial Corp. and subsidiary (parent company of BayCoast Bank), and our report dated
March 22, 2018 expressed an unmodified opinion,




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We were not engaged to, and we have not performed any procedures with respect to
management’s assertion regarding compliance with laws and regulations included in the
accompanying Management's Repori. Accordingly, we do not express any opinion, or any other
form of assurance, on management’s assertion regarding compliance with designated laws and
regulations.

W?“M/ /L.

Boston, Massachusetis
March 22, 2018




Narragansett Financial Corp.

Management’s Report

In this management report, the following subsidiary institution of the Narragansett Financial
Corp. and Subsidiary (the "Company") that is subject to Part 363 is included in the statement of
management's responsibilities; the report on management's assessment of compliance with
designated laws and regulations; and the report on management's assessment of internal control
over financial reporting: BayCoast Bank.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The management of the Company is responsible for preparing the Company's annual financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
Ametica; for establishing and maintaining an adequate internal control structure and procedures
for financial reporting, including controls over the preparation of regulatory financial statements
in accordance with the instructions for the Consolidated Financial Statements for Bank Holding
Companies (“Form FR Y-9C") and the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council
Instructions for Consolidated Reports of Condition and Income (“Call Report™); and for
complying with the Federal and state laws and regulations pertaining to instder loans and
dividend restrictions.

ANA: SSESSMENT OF COMPLIANCE WI 1 D
REGULATIONE

Management of the Company has assessed the Company's compliance with the Federal and
Massachusetts laws and regulations pertaining to insider loans and dividend restrictions during
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, Based upon its assessment, manageinent has
concluded that the Company complied with the Federal and Massachusetts laws and regulations
pertaining to insider loans and dividend restrictions during the fiscal year ended December 31,
2017,

MANAGEMENT'S ASSESSMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Company's internal control over financial reporting is a process effected by those charged

with governance, management, and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of reliable financial statements

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and

financial statements for regulatory reporting purposes, i.e. Form FR Y-9C and the Call Report.

The Company's internal control over {inancial reporting includes those policies and procedures
PO. Box 1311
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that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faitly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America and for regulatory reporting, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention, or timely detection and
correction of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent, or
deteet and correct misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company's intemal control over financial
reporting, including controls over the preparation of regulatory financial statements in
accordance with the Form FR Y-9C and Call Report instructions as of December 31, 2017 based
on the framework set foith by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in nternal Control - Integrated Framework (2013).

Based upon its assessment, management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2017, the
Company's infernal conttol over the preparation of regulatory financial reporiing, incliding
controls over the preparation of regulatory financial statements in accordance with FR Y-9C and
Call Report instructions is effective based on the criteria established in fnternal Control -
Integrated Framework (2013).

2|p_ag . !




Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
including controls over preparation of regulatory financial statements in accordance with the
instructions for Form Y-9C and the Call Report, as of December 31, 2017, has been audited by
Wolf & Company, P.C., an independent public accounting firm, as stated in their report dated
March 22, 2018.

Narragansett Financial-€arp. and Subsidiary

M

Nicholas M. Christ

President & Chief Executive Officer

Ap-2-WO—

Jame allace

Chief Operating Officer

Phillip Carnevale

Chief Financial Officer
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Required Communications

Purpose

This communication is intended to inform the Audit Committee of Narragansett Financial Corp.
(the “Company”) about significant matters related to the conduct of the annual audit so that it can
appropriately discharge its oversight responsibility, and that we comply with owr professional
responsibilities to the Audit Committee. This communication should be read in conjunction with
the Company’s December 31, 2017 consolidated financial statemenls.

Opinions

We rendered unmodified opinions on the December 31, 2017 consolidated financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s internal control over financial reposting (“ICFR”) as of
December 31, 2017,

Auditor Responsibilities

We conducted our integrated audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Our integrated audit was designed to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance
that the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatements.

Qur integrated audit included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements,

Our integrated audit included assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

Our integrated audit included abtaining an understanding of ICFR, evatuating the design
effectiveness of ICFR, and testing operating effectiveness of those controls in order for us
to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financiat reporting.

e B I T e £




Required Communications (Continued)

Accounting Policies, Principles and Technical Updates

The primary responsibility for estahlishing the Company’s accounting policies and practices,
applied in its consolidated financial statements, rests with management. The Company’s
significant accounting policies and practices are included in Note 1 to the conselidated financial
statements. We believe that management’s disclosures regurding such palicies and practices are
adequate.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company adopted the following Accounting
Standards Updates (“ASUs™) issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™):

ASU 2017-08, Receivables—Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs (Subtopic 310-20), Premium
Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt Securities. Adoption of this ASU shortened the
amortization period for callable debt securities held at a premium to the first call date. There
were no material impacts on the consclidated financial statements as a result of adoption.

ASU 2018-02, Income Statement — Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220},
Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income,
Adoption of this ASU allows for a reclassification from accumulated other comprehensive
income (“*AOCI") to retained earnings to eliminate the stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax
Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Act™)., As permifted, the Company recorded a $22,000 decrease in
retained earnings and corresponding increase in AOCI as of December 31, 2017,

See Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements for a summary of ASUs that have been issued
but are not yet effective and may have a significant effect on future financial reporting,

Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates

We have concluded that management’s judgments and accounting estimates in the 2017
consolidated financial statements are reasonable. The process used by management encompasses
their knowledge and experience about past and current events and certain assumptions about
future events. Management has informed us that they used all the relevant facts available to them
at the time to make the best judgments about accoi.mﬁng estimates, and we considered this
information in the scope of our audit.




Required Communications (Continued)

Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates (concluded)

Significant judgments and accounting estimates reflected in the Company’s 2017 consolidated
financial statements include:

Aliowance for loan losses

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based on
management’s periodic review of the collectability of the Toans in light of historical
experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the
borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing
economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are
susceplible to significant revision as more information becomes available. There wete no
significant changes to the Company’s allowance methodology during 2017 or 2016.

Overall coverage of the allowance to total loans at December 31, 2017 and 2016 was 0.66%
and 0.77%, respectively. At December 31, 2017, and 2016, the unallocated portion of the
allowance was $68,000 and $308,000, respectively, while the specific reserve on impaired
lpans was $354,000 and 778,000, respectively.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred taxes are reflected at currently enacted income tax rates applicable to the period in
which the deferred tax assets and liabilities are expecied to be realized or settled. If; in the
judgment of management, a portion of such deferred tax assets will not be realized, a

valuation allowance is established. Management assesses the realizability of deferred tax
assets by assessing whether it is more likely than not that the temporary differences giving
rise to deferred tax assets will reverse in a period in which there is sufficient taxable income
to realize the related income tax benefit. No valuation allowance was recorded at December
31, 2017 or 2016.

Post-retirement benefit obligations

Post-retirement benefit obligations rely on assumptions including discount rates, rates of
compensation increase, expected rate of return on plan assets, mortality, and retirement and
termination dates of participants. Assumptions are recommended by actuaries and benefit
consultants and reviewed for reasonableness by management. At December 31, 2017 and
2016, the discount rate used to calculate the defined benefit pension plan obligation was
3.75% and 4.25%, respectively.

We have performed tests of these estimates to satisfy ourselves as to their reasonableness in
relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, including disclosure.




Required Communications { Continued)

Financial Statement Presentation

The Company’s presentation of the consolidated financial statements and the related disclosures
is in conformity with U8, generally accepted accounting ptinciples. We will discuss with you
items as they relate to the quality of accounting principles and the neutrality, consistency, ar
clarity of the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, Neutrality refers to disclosures
designed to inform rather than influence the reader.

Significant Unusual Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company recorded the following significant
unusual transactions, which are reflected in the consolidated financial statements:

* As aresult of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, enacted on December 22, 2017, the Company
revalued its net deferred tax asset resulting in a reduction io the value of the net deferred tax
asset of $731,000, which was recorded as additional provision for income taxes in the
Company’s consolidated statement of net income in 2017. See Note 11 for additional
information.

s The Company acquired Priority Funding, LLC for $15.0 million. The goodwill reflects $11.0
million in cash paid and $4.0 million to record a contingent lizbility refated to the deferred
purchase price pending certain performance obligations that the Company believes will be
achieved.

The Company owned 8,000 shares of Northeast Retirement Stock, Inc. (“NRS™), which it
recorded using the cost method of accounting. During 2017, Community Bank Systems, Inc.
(“CBU"} acquired NRS in which the Company received $319 in cash and 14.876 shares of
CBU common stock for each share of NRS it owned. As a result of the acquisition, the
Company recorded an $11.3 million gain related to the transaction reflected in gain on
redemption of cost method investment in the consolidated statements of net income.
Additionally, the Company recorded a deferred gain of $1.3 million for amounts being held
for the benefit of the Company that are available for future claims against NRS until final
settlement anticipated in 2013,




Required Communications (Continued)

Significant Unusual Transactions (concluded)

¢ The Company issued $25.0 million in subordinated debt in a private placement offering.
Under the applicable rules of the Federal Reserve Bank, the debt qualified as Tier 2 capital
for the Company subject to certain restrictions. Issuance costs of $734,000 were recorded as
a discount to the debt and are being amortized into interest on borrowings over the life of the
debt.

We did not identify any other significant unusual transactions or significant accounting policies in
controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Qther Information in Documents Containing the Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements

We are not aware of any documents that contain tie audited consolidated financial statements. 1f
such documents were to be published, we would have a responsibility to determine that such
financial information was not materially inconsistent with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company.

Audit Adjustments and Uncorrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards define an audit adjustment as &
proposed cotrection of the financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected
except through our auditing procedures. There were no audit adjustments made to the original
trial balance presented to us to begin our audit.,

We accumulated one uncorrected misstatement as of December 31, 2017 representing an
underacerual of incentive compensation by $179,000 (pre-tax). Uncorrected misstatements as of
December 31, 2016 that reversed during 2017 would have the etfeet of decreasing salaries and
employee benefits expense in the amount of $229,000 (pre-tax) and increasing income tax
expense in the amount of $268,000. We also identified an uncorrected reclassification to increase
cash and due from banks and other liabilities $5.8 million which represents the Priority Funding
restricted cash accounts and loss and prepayment contingencies associated with the individual
loan sale agreements with correspondent banks.

These uncorrected misstatements were discussed with management, and were determined by
management, to be immnaterial to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole,
‘Iherefore these adjustments were not made to the consolidated financial statements.




Required Communications (Continued)

Independence

Independence is crucial to the performance of the audit services, and our professional standards
require that we communicate at least annually regarding all relationships between our Firm and
the Company that may be reasonably thought to bear on our independence.

All officers and employees are provided access to Wolf & Company’s policies and procedures
relating to independence and conflicts of interest. We publish a list of clients with publicly traded
securities, in which investment by officers and employees of the Firm is forbidden. Annually, we
obtain written affidavits from officers and employees about their adherence to these policies,

As of the date of this communication, Wolf & Company, P.C. is independent with respect to the
Company in compliance with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board’s Rule 3520,
Auditor Independence, and with the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission under the federal securities laws,

We would like to remind you that our independence would be impaired if Wolf & Company, P.C.
provided tax services to a person in a financial reporting oversight role, other than outside
directors, at the Company, or to an immediate family member (spouse, spouse equivalent or
dependent) of such person.

We also want to take this opportunity to remind you that cur independence would be impaired if
the Company were to hire, in a financial reporting oversight role, any officer or employee of our

Firm who was a member of the audit engagement team during the current or immediately
preceding audit period.

Services Provided and Related I'ees

Services provided and related fees for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as

follows:

2017 2016
Audit-related fees 3 121,000 $ 118,000
Tax preparation 35,400 34,800
Plimoth Trust extended trust services 13,500 11,500
Information technology (WolfPAC) 36,300 28,100
Due diligence — Priority Funding, LLC 12,000 -




Required Communications (Concluded)

Other Required Communications
There were no:
s Disagreements with management

s Difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audit

s Consultations by management with other accountants ahout accounting or auditing
matters that we are aware of

«  Significant issues discussed with management that were a condition tu our retention

» Aliernative treatments discussed with manapement within generally accepted accounting _
principles for accounting policies and practices related to material items during the |
current audit period

» Significant changes to the planned audit strategy or significant risks initially identified
and communicated to the Audit Committee in our audit scope letter

A copy of management’s representation letters, the only written commutication between our
Firm and management of the Company, are attached to this communication.

Closing

We will be pleased to respond to any questions you have about the foregoing. We appreciate the
opportunity to continue to be of service to Narragansett Financial Corp.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee,
Board of Trustees, regulatory authorities and management, and is not intended 1o be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
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Narragansett Financial Corp.
March 22, 2018

Wolf & Company, PC,
99 High Street
Boston, MA 02110

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audits of the consolidated financial
statements of Narragansett Financial Corp. and subsidiary (the “Company”) which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the related consolidated slateinents of
net income, comprehensive income, retained earnings and cash flows, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the years then ended, we confirm that we are responsible for the fair
presentation in the consolidated financial statements of financial position, results of operations and cash
flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In connection with your audit of internal control over financial reporting for Narragansett Finaneial Corp.
and subsidiary as of December 31, 2017, we confirm that we are responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting,

We confirm to the best of cur knowledge and belief, as of date of this letter, the following representations
made to you during your sudit:

Finameial Statemnents

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilitics, as set out in the terms of the audit arrangement letter dated
March 27, 2017 for the preperation and fair presentation of the financial statements referred to above
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

2. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and iaintenance of intetnal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements tht ate free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

3, We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of infernal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

4. Significant assumptions used by us in maaking accounting estimates, including those measured at fair
value, are reasonable.

5. Related party relationships aud transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of U8, GAAP,

6. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S, GAAP requires
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

7. Asofand for the year ended December 31, 2017, we believe that the effect of the uncorrected
Imisstatements are immaterial to the consolidated financial statements. For purposes of this
representation, we consider items to be material, regardless of their size, if they involve the
misstatement or omission of accounting information that, in fight of surrounding circumstances,
makes it probable that the judgement of a reasonable person relying on the information would be
changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement, There was one uncorrocted misstatements at
December 31, 2017, related to a $179,000 underacerual of incentive compensation expense. There
was also an uncorrected reclassification to increase cash and due from banks and other liabilities $5.8
million which represents the Priority Funding restricted cash accounts and loss and prepayment
contingencies associated with the individual loan sale agreements with cotrespondent banks.
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8. There are na known pending or threatened [itigation, claims or assessinents, or unasserted claims or
assegsments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with U.S. GAAP. We have made you aware of all litigation for which we have consulted

a lawyer,

9. The following have been propetly recorded and/or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements;
Guarantees, whether wrilten or oral, under which the institution is contingently liable,
Arrangements with other finencial institutions involving compensating balances or other
arcangements involving restristions on cash balances.

Lines of credit or similar arrangements.

d. Agreements to repurchase assets previously sold.

e. Security agreements in effect under the Uniform Commercial Code.

f.  All other liens or encumbrances on assets and ali other pledges of assets.

g, Amounts of contractual obligations for construction and/or purchase of real property, equipment,
other assefs and inlangibles.

h. Investments in debt and equity securities, including their classification as available for sale.

i. All liabilities that arc subordinated to any other actual or possible fiabilities of the Company,

§. Al leases and material amounts of rental obligations under long-term leases.

k. All significant estimates and material concentrations known to management that are to be
disclosed in accordance with the Risks and Uncertainties Topic of the FASB Accounting
Standards Cedification. Significant estimates are estimates at the balance shect date that could
change matetially within the next year, Concentrations refer to volumes of business, revenues,
available sources of supply, or markets for which events could occur that would significantly
disrupt normal finances within the next year.

1. Assets and Habilities measured at fait value in accordance with the Fair Value Measurements
and Disclosures Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification,

m. All current and deferred assets and liabilities related to income taxes. Additionally, we have
evaluated the tax positions under the two-step approach for recognition and measurement of
uncertain tax positions required by the Incoms Tax Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification.

n. Loans being held for sale.

o. Concentrations of credit risk,

p. Financial instruments with off-balance-sheet market or credit risk,

nformation Provided

10, We have made available to you:

a.

Access to all information, of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements such as recotds, documentation, end other matters,
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12,

13,

14,

is.

i6.

i7.

18,

19.

20

b.  Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

¢. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.

d. Minutes of the meetings of directars, and committees of directors, or summaries of actions of
recent meefings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

e. Reports and carrespondence between the Bank and regulatory examiners during the period under
audit and all supervisory memoranda or agreements, if any, with any federal or state regulatory
authority.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

We have no knowledge of allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity’s consolidated
financial statements involving:

a. Management.
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control.
¢. Others where the frand could have a material effect on the consolidated financia) statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Company’s
consolidated financial statements received in communications from employees, former emplovees,
analysts, regulators, or others.

We have no knowledge of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with laws and regulations
whose effects should be considerad when preparing consolidated finaneial statements.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related-party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware,

We have performed an evaluation and made our assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting besed on criteria established in Mfernal Controf — Integrated
Framework (2013} issned by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO),

We ate aware of no significant deficiencies, including material weakaesses, in the design or operation
of internal controls that could adversely affect the Company's ability to record, process, summarize,
and report financial data.

We did not use your procedures performed during the audits of internal control over financial
reporting or the financial statements as part of the basis fot our assessment of the effectiveness of
internal contro! over financial reporting.

The Comgpany maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria established in Jaternal Control — Integrated Framework
{2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Our evalvation of the design and operation of infernal comtrol over financial reporting did not result in
any deficiencies, including any which would constitute significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses.
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21. There were, subsequent fo Decetnber 31, 2017, no changes in internal control over financial reporting
or other factors that might significantly affect internal control over financial reporting, including any
corrective actions taken by us with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

29, There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices,

23, We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of

assets. In that regard:

a. Tho Company has no significant amounts of idle property and equipment.

b. The Company has no plans or intentions to discontinue the operations of any subsidiary ot
division or to discontinue any significant product lines.

c. We consider the decline in fair value of debt or equity securities classified as available for sale to
be femporary. '

d. Provision has been made to reduce all assets that have permanently declined in value to their
realizable values.

e. We have reviewed long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles to be held and used for
impairment whenever events or changes In circumstances have indicated that the carrying amount
of the assets might nat be recoverable and have appropriately recorded the adjustment.

24, We are responsible for making the accounting estimates included in the consolidated financial
statoments. Those estimates reflect our judgment based on our knowledge and experience about past
and cutrent events and our assumptions about conditions we expect to exist and courses of action we
expect to take. In that regard, adequate provisions have been made;

a. To maintain an adequate allowance for loan losses.
b. To reduce deferred tax assets fo amounts that are more likely than not fo be realized.

c. For pension and profit sharing obligations, postretirement beniefits other than pensions, and
deferred compensation agresments attributable to employee scrvices rendered through December
31, 2017

To reduce foreclosed asseis to fair value less estimated costs to sell,
To adjust secutities available for sale to fair value.

For environmental cleanup obligations.

® ™R oA

To reduce loans held for sale to the lower of cost or Tair value,

25, There are no.

a. Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations whose effects shoutd be considered for
disclosure in the financial statements or as & basis for recording a loss contingency. In that regard,
we specifically represent that we have not been designated as, or alleged to be, a "potentially
responsible party” by the Environmental Protection Agency in connection with any
environmental contamination.
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28,

29,

30.
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b. Other material liabilitics or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be acerued or disclosed
by the Contingencies Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification.

¢.  Dovelopment or construction arrangements which the Company has entered into, acquired
patticipation, or renegotiated previous agreements resulting in arrangements in which the
Company as lender, participates in expected residual profit through (@) shariug in the profit on
sale of real estate projects; (4} a higher than normal interest rate; or (¢) sharing in gross rents or
net cash flows from the project.

d. Material recourse agreements on loans previously sold.

¢. Regulatory examinations cutrently in progress or for which we have not received examination
reports, except for the December 2017 FDIC Safety and Soundness examination, of which
preliminary results were made available and thers were no issnes brought to our attention that
would impact the consolidated financial statements as of December 3(, 2017.

f  Matcrial losses to be sustained in the fulfillment of, or from the inability to fulfill, any
commitments 1o extend credit.

g Obligations under any loan recourse provisions and the Company has complied with the technical
default requirements of all agreements for loans and participations sold to others,

The company has satisfactory title to all owned assets,

We have complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

We agree with the findings of specialists in evaluating the defined benefit pension liability and fair
value of the MSRs and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining
the amounis and disclosures used in the financial statements and underfying accounting records. We
did not give or cause any instructions to be given to specialists with respect to the values or amounts
derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that have had
an impact on the independence or objectivity of the specialists,

We agree with the findings of appraisers used and have adequately considered the qualifications of
the appraisers in determining the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and
underlying accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to appraisers
regarding the values or amounts derived to attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware
of any matters that have had an impact on the independence or objectivity of these appraisets.

In considering the disclosures that should be made about risks and uncertainties, we have concluded
that the following risk disclosures are required:

a. Determination of the allowance for loan losses

b. Determination of other—than-temporary impairment of securities
¢. Realizability of deferred tax assets

d. Valuation of post-retirement benefit obligations

We have evaluated all of our debt securities for which there has been a decline in fair value below the
amortized cost. In that regard:

a. We do not have the intent to sell any of the sccurities that are in an unrealized loss position.
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32.

33,

34

35,

b. We have forecasted recovery of these debt securities and our liquidity and have concluded that it
is not more-likely-than-not that we will have to sell the securities prior to forecasted recovery.

c. We have evaluated these debt securities to determine whether we expect to recover the amortized
cost basis of the securities. We have concluded in all cases that we will recover the amortized cost
basis of the securities and recorded the entire unrealized loss in other comprehensive income.

No action has been taken, nor is any action contemplated, that would cause any portion of the
accumulated bad debt deduction to be subjected to income tax.

As of December 31, 2017, the most recent notification from the Federal Depositors [nsurance
Corporation categorized the Company as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes
have changed the Company’s category.

We are responsible for determining that significant events or transactions that have occurred since the
balance sheet date and through the date of this letter have been recognized or disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements. No events or transactions other than those disclosed in the financial
statements have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date and through the date of this letter that
would require recognition or disclosure in, the consolidated financial statements. We further represent
that as of the date of this letter, the consolidated financial statements were complete in a form and
format that complied with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and all approvals necessary for issuance of the financial statements had been obtained.

During the course of your audit, you may have accumulated records containing data which should be
reflected in our books and records. All such data have been so reflected. Accordingly, copies of such
records in your possession are no longer needed by us.

Sincerely yoms MAA

NicholasM Cln ist ~ls
President & CEO

Rp\0—

JaWallace

EVP

e KX

Carnevale

SVP CFO
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WOL

& COMPANY, PC.

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Audit Committee of Narragansett Financial Corp.:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Narragansett Financial Corp. and subsidiary, as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of net income, comprehensive
income (loss), changes in retained earnings and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the bank’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Narragansett Financial Corp. and subsidiary as of December 31, 2017
and 2016, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We also have examined, in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, Narragansett Financial Corp.’s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2017, based on Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) and our report, dated
March 22, 2018, expressed an unmodified opinion.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, including consolidating financial statements,
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements.

The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financiat statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards general accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole.

%%{M/ VA

Boston, Massachusetts
March 22, 2018



Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,2017 and 2016

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Securitics available for sale, at far value
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost
Loans held for sale

Loans, net

Bank-owned life nsurance

Premises and equipment, net

Accrued interest receivable

Net deferred tax asset

Goodwill and other intangible assets
Other assets

Liabilities and Retained Earnings

Deposits
Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Subordinated debt
Other habilities
Total liabilitics

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 5 and 12)

Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total retamed eamings of Narragansett
Fmancial Corp. and Subsidiary

Non-controlling mierest m subsidiary

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2017 2016
(In thousands)
$ 21510 S 20867
184,190 206,731
8,585 8,151
15,047 35,588
1,132,308 920,781
25,090 19,001
31,259 31,276
3,997 3,186
2,318 4,573
20,637 5,319
14,430 11,860
$1,459371  $1,267,333
$1,118,724  $ 991,501
157,337 137,640
43,650 19,267
25,382 15,534
1,345,093 1,163,042
115,366 105,588
(1,369) (2,297)
113,997 103,291
281 100
114,278 103,391
$1,459,371  $1,267,333




Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Net Income

Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Interest and dividend income:
Interest and fees on loans
Inerest on debt securities
Dividend income
Interest on cash equivalents
Total interest and dividend income

Interest expense:
Interest on deposits
Interest on Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Interest on subordinated debt
Total interest expense

Net mterest ncome
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income, after provision for loan losses

Other income:
Customer service fees
Trust department fees
Insurance and brokerage commissions
Gain on securities available for sale, net
Gain on redemption of cost method nvestment
Gain on sales of oans, net
BOLI income
Miscellaneous
Totat other income

Operating expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy and equipment
Professional fees
Data processing
Advertising costs
Deposit msurance
Amortization of intangible assets
Other general and administrative

Total operating expenses

Income before mcome taxes

Proviion for ncome taxes

Net income

Net income (loss) attributed to non-controlling nterest in subsidiary

Net income attributed to Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,

2017 2016
{In thousands)

$ 43,592 $ 3924
3,378 2,490
1,481 1,220
33 22
48,484 42,973
4,092 3,638
3.623 2,703
1,536 614
9,251 6,955
39,233 36,018
880 750
38,353 35,268
3,072 3,864
4,081 3,493
5,047 4,730
710 1,451
11,297 -
3,953 5,141
589 5190
221 393
30,970 19,582
32,512 29,273
7.772 7,426
1,979 1,232
2,340 2,054
918 880
695 794
409 389
6,573 5,934
53,198 47,982
16,125 6,868
6,344 1,965
9,781 4,899
(1%} 57
$ 9,800 $ 4842




Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016
(In thousands)
Net mcome $ 9,781 $ 4,899
Other comprehensive meome:
Securities available for sale:
Unrealized holding gains 4,727 4,494
Rechssification adjustment for gains realized in ncome ' (710) (1,451)
Net unrealized gains 4,017 3,043
Related tax effects (1,610) (1,218)
Net-of-tax amowunt 2,407 1,825
Defined benefit pension plans:
Gains {losses) arising during the period {2,700) 354
Reclassification adjustment for losses
recognized in net periodic benefit cost @ 611 675
Net defined benefit pension plan gains (losses) (2,089) 1,029
Related tax effects 588 (411)
Net-of-tax amount {1,501) 618
Total other comprehensive income 906 2,443
Comprehensive ncome § 10,687 § 7342

) Amounts are reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive loss and are included in
gain on securities available for sale, net on the consolidated statements of net income. Income
tax expense associated with these gains for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was
$284,000 and $580,000, respectively.

) Amounts are reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive loss and are included in
salaries and employee benefits expense on the consolidated statements of net income. Income
tax benefit associated with these expenses for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was
$244,000 and $270,000, respectively.

See accompanying notes to consclidated financial statements.



Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Retained Earnings

Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Accumulated
Other Non- Total
Retained Comprehensive Controlling Retaned
Eamings  Income (Loss) Interest Earnings
(In thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2013 $100,746 $ 4,790y §% 43 $ 96,049
Conprehensive income 4,842 2,443 57 7,342
Balance at December 31, 2016 $105,588 $ 2,297y % 100 $103,391
Adoption of ASU 2018-02 (Note 11) (22) 22 - -
Comprehensive income 9,800 206 (19 10,687
Contribution from non-controlling interest - - 200 200
Balance at December 31, 2017 3115366 3 {(1,369) % 281 $114,278

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016
(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 9,781 S 4,899
Adjustmenis to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by {used in) operating activities:
Net amortization of securities available for sale 900 767
Gain on securities available for sake, net (710) (1,451)
Gain on restricted investmetit (11,297) -
Gain on sales of portfolio loans (281) (1,508)
Amortization of loans and deposits from
acquisition accounting, net 118 19
Provision for loan losses 380 750
Net change in loans held for sale 20,541 (12,936)
Mortgage servicing rights capitalized (688) (1,203)
Depreciation and amortization of premises and
equipmer, intangible assets and mortgage
servicing rights 3.399 3,877
Increase n cash surrender value of life msurance (589) (510)
Deferred tax provision 1,233 2,655
Net change in:
Accrued interest receivable (811} (681)
Other assets and other Labilities (8,119) (5,962)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 14,857 (11,184
Cash flows from mvesting activities:
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale 68,602 95,119
Proceeds from calls/maturities of, and principal payments on,
securities available for sale 59,666 13,761
Purchase of securities available for sak (95,198) (182,309)
Purchase of FHLB stock (3,303) (3,574)
Redemption of FHLB stock 2,869 1,019
Purchase of bank-owned life insurance {3.500) -
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed real estate 330 286
Proceeds from sales of portfolio boans 47,535 76,792
Proceeds from redemption of cost method investment 5,984 -
Net cash used n acquisitions (4,102} -
Loan originations and purchases, net of amortization and payofls (259,811) (120,563)
Additions to premises and equipment (2,976) (5,365)
Proceeds from the disposal of premises and equipment 187 298
Net cash used in investing activities (185,717) (124,536)

(continuexd)
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Concluded)

Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net ncrease n deposits

Net change in Federal Home Loan Bank advances
with maturities of three months or less

Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank
advances with maturities in excess of three months

Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank advances
with maturities in excess of three months

Issuance of subordinated debt, net of ssuance costs

Contribution from non-controlling interest

Net cash provided by finmancing activities

Net change mn cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at begiming of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemenial cash flow mformation:
Interest paid on deposits
Interest paid on borrowings and subordmated debt
Income taxes paid (refimded), net
Transfer from loans to foreclosed real estate
Securities available for sake received upon redemption of cost method mnvestment
Deferred gain on redemption of cost method investment

In comection with the acquisition of Priority Funding:

Fair vahe of assets acquired, excluding cash
Fair value of liabilities assumed

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2017 2016
(In thousands)
127,223 65,489
3,150 -
35,100 62,000
(18,553) {4,356)
24,383 19,267
200 -
171,503 142,400
643 6,680
20,867 14,187

$ 21,510 $ 20,867

$ 4072 § 3,629
5,058 2,681
3,841 (716)

32 376
6,702 -
1,268 -

16,260 -
12,803 -



Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of presentation and consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Narragansett Financial Corp.
(the “Company”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, BayCoast Bank (the “Bank™), and the
Bank's subsidiaries. The Bank provides a variety of financial services to individuals and
businesses through its offices in southeastern Massachusetts and Rhode Island. Its primary
deposit products are checking, savings, money market and term certificates, and its primary
lending products are residential, commercial and multi-family mortgages and commercial
loans.

The Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiaries include BayCoast Financial Services (“BFS™), which
sells non-deposit investment products to individuals and entities; Troy Security Corporation
and B.F.R. Corp., which buy, hold, and sell securities on their own behalf; 1851 Corporation,
which holds investments and real estate property; Partners Insurance Group, LLC (“Partners”
a wholly-owned subsidiary of BFS, which provides insurance products to consumers and
businesses; BayCoast Mortgage Company, LLC (*BCMC”) which originates and sells
conforming and jumbo residential mortgages; and Priority Funding, LLC (“Priority Funding™)
which primarily originates and selts manufactured home loans.

2

Plimoth Trust Company, LLC, d/b/a Plimoth Investment Advisors (“Plimoth™) is an 80%-
owned subsidiary of the Bank to provide investment management and trust services. Plimoth
acts as a fiduciary and provides portfolio and/or trust services to its clicnts. The remaining
20% of Plimoth is owned by an unrelated third party and is reported as a non-controlling
interest in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Use of estimates

In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, management is required to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the
consolidated balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are
particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the
allowance for loan losses, post-retirement benefit obligations and the realizability of deferred
tax assets.



Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant group concentrations of credit and other risks

Most of the Company’s activities are with customers located in southeastern Massachusetts
and Rhode Island. Note 4 includes the types of lending in which the Company engages. The
Company does not have any significant concentrations to any one industry or customer.

Fair value hierarchy

The Company groups its assets that are measured at fair value in three levels, based on the
markets in which the assets are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine
fair value.

Level 1 — Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.
Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources.

Level 2 — Valuation is based on observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted
prices for similar assets; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of
the assets.

Level 3 — Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market
activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets. Level 3 assets include assets
whose value is determined using unobservable inputs to pricing models, discounted cash flow
methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for which the determination of
fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation.

Transfers between levels are recognized at the end of the reporting period, if applicable.
Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2016 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to
conform to the 2017 presentation.

Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include balances due from banks and short-term investments, which
consist of interest-bearing deposits and federal funds sold, which mature overnight or on demand
and are carried at cost. The Company normally maintains balances on deposit with other financial
institutions in excess of federally insured limits.

10



Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Securities

Securities available for sale are reflected at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses
excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income/loss.

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method
over the terms of the securities. Effective in 2017, premiums on callable bonds are amortized
through the earliest call date. Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the
trade date and for debt and equity securities determined using the specific identification
method and for mutual funds using the average cost method.

Each reporting period, the Company evaluates all securities with a decline in fair value below
the amortized cost of the investment to determine whether or not the impairment is deemed to
be other than temporary (“OTTI™).

OTTI is required to be recognized (1) if the Company intends to sell the security; (2) if it is
“more likely than not” that the Company will be required to sell the security before recovery of
its amortized cost basis; or (3) for debt securities, if the present value of expected cash flows is
not sufficient to recover the entire amortized cost basis. For impaired debt securities that the
Company intends to sell, or more likely than not will be required to sell, the full amount of the
depreciation is recognized as OTTI through earnings. For all other impaired debt securities,
credit-related OTTI is recognized through earnings and non-credit related OTTTI is recognized
in other comprehensive income/loss, net of applicable taxes. Marketable equity securities are
evaluated for OTTI based on the severity and duration of the impairment and, if deemed to be
other than temporary, the declines in fair value are reflected in eamings as realized losses.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

The Company, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB") system, is required to
maintain an investment in capital stock of the FHLB of Boston. Based on the redemption
provisions of the FHLB, the stock has no quoted market value and is carried at cost. At its
discretion, the FHLB may declare dividends on the stock. The Company reviews for
impairment based on the ultimate recoverability of the cost basis in the stock. As of
December 31, 2017, no impairment has been recognized.

Loans held for sale

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost
or estimated fair value in the aggregate. Fair values are based on commitments in effect from
investors or prevailing market prices. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a
valuation allowance by charges to income.

11



Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loans

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until
maturity or pay-off generally are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances
adjusted for charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, any deferred fees or costs on originated
loans and premiums on purchased loans. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal
balance. Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and
recognized as an adjustment of the related loan yield using the interest method.

The accrual of interest on all loans is discontinued at the time a loan is 90 days past due unless
the credit is well-secured and in process of collection. Past due status is based on contractual
terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual earlier if collection of principal
or interest is considered doubtful. All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are
placed on nonaccrual is reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is
accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for retum to accrual.
Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually
due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for loan losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a
provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance
when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management. This ¢valuation
is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as
more information becomes available. The allowance consists of general, allocated and
unallocated components, as further described below.

12



Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Allowance for loan losses (continued)
General component

The general component of the allowance for loan losses is based on historical loss experience
adjusted for qualitative factors stratified by the Company’s loan segments. Management uses
a rolling average of historical losses based on a time frame appropriate to capture relevant loss
data for each loan segment. This historical loss factor is adjusted for the following quatitative
factors: levels of and trends in delinquencies and impaired loans; levels of and trends in
charge-offs and recoveries; trends in volume and terms of loans; effects of any changes in risk
selection and underwriting; experience, ability and depth of lending management and other
relevant staff; national and local economic trends and conditions; industry conditions and
effects of changes in credit concentrations. There were no changes in the Company’s policies
or methodology pertaining to the general component of the allowance for loan losses during
2017 and 2016. The qualitative factors are determined based on the various risk characteristics
of each loan segment. Risk characteristics relevant to each portfolio segment are as follows:

Residential real estate — The Company generally does not originate loans with a loan-to-value
ratio greater than 80 percent without private mortgage insurance, and does not generally grant
loans that would be classified as sub-prime upon origination. All loans in this segment are
collateralized by residential real estate and repayment is dependent on the credit quality of the
individual borrower. The overall health of the economy, including unemployment rates and
housing prices, will have an effect on the credit quality in this segment,

Commercial and multi-family real estate — Loans in this segment include owner-occupied
multi-family and income-producing properties throughout New England. The underlying cash
flows generated by the properties are adversely impacted by a downturn in the economy as
evidenced by increased vacancy rates, which in turn, will have an effect on the credit quality in
this segment. Management obtains rent rolls annually and continually monitors the cash flows
of these loans.

Construction — Loans in this segment include pre-sold and speculative real estate development loans
for which payment is derived from sale of the property. Credit risk is affected by cost overruns, time

to sell at an adequate price, and market conditions.

Home equity lines of credit (“HELOC™) and second mortgages — Loans in this segment are
collateralized by residential real estate and payment is dependent on the credit quality of the individual

borrower. The Company has first and second liens on property securing these loans.

13



Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Allowance for loan losses (continued)
General component (concluded)

Commercial - Loans in this segment are made to businesses and are generally secured by
assets of the business. Repayment is expected from the cash flows of the business. A
weakened economy, and resultant decreased consumer spending, will have an effect on the
credit quality in this segment.

Consumer — Loans in this segment include loans secured with collateral and unsecured loans
with repayment dependent on the credit quality of the individual borrower. At December 31,
2017, $32,765,000 and $18,000,000 of purchased consumer loans were for manufactured
housing loans and student loans, respectively.

Allocated component

The allocated component relates to loans that are classified as impaired. Based on internal
credit analyses, residential real estate loans, commercial, commercial real estate and multi-
family and construction loans are evaluated for impairment on a loan-by-loan basis.
Impairment is measured by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at
the loan’s effective interest rate or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent. An allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value)
of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan. Large groups of smaller
balance homogencous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the
Company does not separately identify individual consumer loans for impairment disclosures,
unless such loans are subject to a troubled debt restructuring agreement.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable
that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest
when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by
management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the
probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that
experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as
impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls
on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan
and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s
prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest
owed.

14



Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Allowance for loan losses (concluded)

Allocated component (concluded)

The Company periodically may agree to modify the contractual terms of loans. When a loan is
modified and a concession is made to a borrower experiencing financial difficulty, the
modification is considered a troubled debt restructuring (“TDR”). All TDRs are initially
classified as impaired.

Unallocated component

An unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management’s
estimate of probable losses. The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin
of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for
estimating allocated and general reserves in the portfolio.

Loan servicing

Capitalized mortgage servicing rights are reported in other assets and are amortized into other
income in proportion to, and over the period of, the estimated future net servicing income of
the underlying loans. Mortgage servicing rights are evaluated for impairment based upon the
fair value of the rights compared to amortized cost. Impairment is determined by stratifying
rights by predominate risk characteristics, such as interest rates and terms. Impairment, if
material, 1s recognized through a valuation allowance for an individual stratum, to the extent
that fair value 13 less than the capitalized amount of the stratum. Changes in the valuation
allowance are reported in other income. Fair value 1s based on a valuation model that
calculates the present value of estimated future net servicing income, using certain prepayment
assumptions that may not be observable in the market place.

Foreclosed real estate

Real estate acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure is held for sale and is initially
recorded at fair value, less costs to sell, at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost
basis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management and
the real estate is carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.
Revenue and expenses from operations, changes in the valuation allowance and any direct
write-downs are included in other general and administrative expense. Gains and losses on
sales are included in miscellaneous income.

15



Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Premises and equipment

Land is carried at cost. Buildings, equipment and leaschold improvements are carried at cost,
less accumulated depreciation and amortization computed on the straight-line method over the
expected terms of the leases or estimated useful lives of the assets if shorter. Expected terms
include lease option periods to the extent that the exercise of such option is reasonably
assured.

Bank-owned life insurance

Bank-owned life insurance policies are reflected on the consolidated balance sheets at cash
surrender value. Changes in the net cash surrender value of the policies, as well as insurance
proceeds received in excess of cash surrender value, are reflected in other income on the
consolidated statements of net income and are not subject to income taxes.

Transfers of financial assets

Transfers of an entire financial asset, a group of entire financial assets, or a participating
interest in an entire financial asset are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has
been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the
assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right to pledge or
exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over
the transferred assets.

During the normal course of business, the Company may transfer a portion of a loan. In order
to be eligible for sales treatment, the transferred portion of the loan must meet the criteria of a
participating interest. If it does not meet the criteria of a participating interest, the transfer
must be accounted for as a secured borrowing. In order to meet the criteria for a participating
interest, all cash flows from the loan must be divided proportionately, the rights of each loan
holder must have the same priority, the loan holders must have no recourse to the transferor
other than standard representations and warranties and no loan holder has the right to pledge or
exchange the entire loan.
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Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derivatives

Mortgage loan commitments qualify as derivative loan commitments if the loan that will result
from exercise of the commitment will be held for sale upon funding. Loan commitments that
are derivatives, if material, are recognized at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets in
other assets and other liabilities with changes in their fair values recorded in other income. At
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the fair values of derivative loan commitments and related
forward sale commitments were not material.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

The assets (including identifiable intangible assets) and liabilities acquired in a business
combination are recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is recognized for
the excess of the acquisition cost (or the fair value of the entity acquired) over the fair value of
the net assets acquired and is not subsequently amortized. Management assesses the
recoverability of goodwill at least on an annual basis or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If the carrying amount
exceeds fair value, an impairment charge is recorded through operations.

Other intangible assets represent the long-term value of customer relationships acquired and
are being amortized over their estimated lives on a straight-line basis. The Company
periodically evaluates the realizability of other intangible assets based on the value of the
underlying customer relationships. If that value is less than the carrying amount of the
intangible assets and is considered permanent, the Company would recognize an impairment
loss.

Insurance commissions

Most commission revenue is recognized as of the effective date of the insurance policy or the
date the customer is billed, whichever is later, net of retum commissions related to policy
cancellations. In addition, the Company may receive additional performance commissions
based on achieving certain sales and loss experience measures. Such commissions are
recognized when determinable, which is generally when such commissions are received or
when the Company receives data from the insurance companies that allows the reasonable
estimation of these amounts,

Pension plan
The compensation cost of an employee’s pension benefit is recognized on the projected unit

credit method over the employee’s approximate service period. The aggregate cost method is
utilized for funding purposes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Pension plan (concluded)

The Company accounts for its defined benefit pension plan using an actuarial model that
allocates pension costs over the service period of employees in the plan. The Company
accounts for the over-funded or under-funded status of its defined benefit plan as an asset or
liability in its consolidated balance sheets and recognizes changes in the funded status in the
year in which the changes occur through other comprehensive income or loss.

Income faxes

The Company, the Bank and all subsidiaries file state and consolidated federal income tax
returns based on an October 31 year-end. Effective November 1, 2017, the Company has
changed their tax year-end to December 31. As a result, the Company will file a two-month
tax return for the period ended December 31, 2017.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using the liability (or balance sheet)
method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is determined based on the
tax effects of the temporary differences between the book and tax bases of the various balance
sheet assets and liabilities and gives current recognition to changes in tax rates and laws in the
period of enactment. Accordingly, changes resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act enacted on
December 22, 2017 have been recognized in the consolidated financial statements as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2017 (See Note 11). A valuation allowance is established against
deferred tax assets when, based upon the available evidence including historical and projected
taxable income, it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized.

The Company does not have any uncertain tax positions at December 31, 2017 and 2016
which require accrual or disclosure.

The Company records interest and penalties as part of income tax expense. No interest or
penalties were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Trust assets

Trust assets held in a fiduciary or agency capacity are not included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Advertising costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
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Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Comprehensive income/loss

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be
included in net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities are reported as a
separate component of the retained earnings section of the consolidated balance sheets, such
items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income/loss.

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income/loss, included in retained
earnings, are as follows:

December 31,
2017 2016
(In thousands)
Securities available for sale:
Net unrealized gain $ 9,068 $ 5,051
Tax effect (2,555) (2,017)
Net-oftax amount 6,513 3,034
Defined benefit pension plans:
Unrecognized actuarial loss (10,965) (8,876)
Tax effect 3,083 3,545
Net-of-tax amount (7,882) (5,331)

$ (1,369) § (2,297)

An actuanial loss of $782,000, included in accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31,
2017, is expected to be recognized as a component of net periodic pension cost for the year ending
December 31, 2018.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contimued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Recent accounting pronouncements

In January 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued Accounting
Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-01, Financial Instruments — Overall, (Subtopic 825-10)
Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The amendments in
this Update address certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of
financial instruments. Targeted improvements to generally accepted accounting principles
include the requirement for equity investments (except those accounted for under the equity
method of accounting or those that result in consolidation of the investee) to be measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognized in net income. The amendments in this Update are
effective for the Company for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim
periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. The impact of the change in
marketable equity securities will depend on market conditions, but if applied during the year
ended December 31, 2017 the $3,898,000 (pre-tax) net unrealized gain on marketable equity
securities would have been reflected in net income instead of other comprehensive income.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). This Update requires
companies that lease assets to recognize on the balance sheet the assets and liabilities for the
rights and obligations created by those leases. The amendments are effective for years beginning
after December 135, 2019 with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating
the impact to the consolidated financial statements of adopting this Update, but does not expect
adoption to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments —Credit Losses (Topic
326), Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. Among other things, these
amendments require the measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the
reporting date based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable
forecasts. The amendments in this Update are effective for the Company for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2020, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2021. Early application will be permitted for fiscal years, and interim periods
within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact this Update will have on its consolidated financial statements and expects
significant changes to the allowance for loan losses methodology upon adoption. No financial
mmpacts have been determined.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Recent accounting pronouncements (continued)

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230):
Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments. The amendments in this
Update provide cash flow statement classification guidance for certain areas where
diversification existed in practice. The amendments are effective for the Company for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019. Early application is permitted, including adoption in
an interim period. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this Update will have
on its consolidated financial statements, but does not expect the adoption to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic
350): Smplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment. The amendments in this Update
simplify the goodwill impairment model by eliminating the second step of the model. The
resulting impairment test will compare the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying
amount, including goodwill. If the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit’s fair value,
an impairment charge would be recognized for the difference, but should not exceed the
carrying amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. An entity still has the option
to perform the qualitative assessment to determine if the quantitative impairment test is
necessary. The amendments should be applied on a prospective basis. The amendments
are effective for annual or any interim goodwill impairment tests in fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2021. Early adoption is permitted for interim or annual goodwill
impairment tests performed on testing dates after January 1, 2017. Management does not
currently expect this Update to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

In March 2017, the FASB 1ssued ASU 2017-08, Receivables— Nonrefundable Fees and
Other Costs (Subtopic 310-20), Premium Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt
Securities. The amendments in this Update shorten the amortization period for certain
callable debt securities held at a premium. Specifically, the amendments require the
premium to be amortized to the earliest call date. The amendments do not require an
accounting change for securities held at a discount; the discount continues to be amortized
to maturity. Early adoption is specifically permitted by the ASU. The Company has
adopted this update during the year ended December 31, 2017 with no material impacts on
the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (concluded)

Recent accounting pronouncements (concluded)

In August, 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815):
Targeted Improvements to Accounting for Hedging Activities. The amendments in this
Update refine and expand hedge accounting for both financial (e.g., interest rate) and
commodity risks. Its provisions create more transparency around how economic results are
presented, both on the face of the financial statements and in the footnotes. It also makes
certain targeted improvements to simplify the application of hedge accounting guidance.
This Update is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim
periods beginning after December 15, 2020. Early adoption, including adoption in an
miterim period, is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this Update
will have on its conselidated financial statements.

RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM BANKS

The Company is required to maintain average balances on hand or with the Federal Reserve
Bank. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, these reserve balances amounted to $1,860,000
and $1,268,000, respectively.

At both December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company has also pledged $500,000 in cash held at
a correspondent bank to the State of Maine to establish the Plimoth Trust Company, LLC.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

The amortized cost and fair value of securities available for sale with gross unrealized gains

and losses, follows:

December 31, 2017

Debt securities:
U.S. Governrent bonds
State and municipal bonds
Corporate bonds:
Financial services
Consumer products
Energy
Other
Total debt securities

Equity securities:
Fnancial services
Mutual finds
Commumnications
Consumer products
Industrial
Technology
Other
Total equity securities

Total securities
available for sale

23

Gross Gross
Amortized  Umrealized Unrealized Farr
Cost Gams Losses Value
(In thousands)

$ 37,965 h) - $ (216) $ 37,749
70,664 15 (127) 70,552
22,088 295 (43) 22,340
4,513 2 [K)) 4,512
2,042 10 )] 2,047
4,560 - 4) 4,556
141,832 322 (398) 141,756
6,159 2,017 (148) 8,028
4,677 940 - 5,617
3,562 1,071 (18) 4,615
7,446 1,809 (73) 9,182
3,035 1,105 (67) 4,073
4,436 1,779 (40) 6,175
3,975 792 (23) 4,744
33,290 9,513 {369) 42,434
$175,122 $ 9,835 $ (767) $ 184,190




Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (continued)

Decernber 31, 2016

Debt securities:
U.S. Government bonds
State and municipal bonds
Corporate bonds:
Financial services
Consumer products
Energy
Other
Total debt securities

Equity securities:
Financial services
Mutual fimds
Commumications
Consumer products
Industrial
Techrology
Other

Tota! equity securities

Total securities
available for sak

Securities with an amortized cost of $25,975,000 and $22,987,000 and a fair value of

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Vale
(In thousands)

$ 52,979 $ 19 (132) § 52,866
59,182 38 (87) 59,133
28,843 40 {7 28.812
10,470 11 (13) 10,468
5,140 1 (18) 5,123
18,028 44 (27) 18,045
174,642 153 (34%8) 174,447
4,388 1,760 ) 6,146
3,635 423 (66) 3,992
2,886 640 G 3,495
2,801 541 (14) 3,328
6,774 732 (148) 7,358
3,335 896 3 4,226
3,219 610 {90) 3,739
27,038 5,602 (356) 32,284
$ 201,680 $ 5755 (704) $206,731

$25.828,000 and $22,996,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, were pledged to
secure public funds and other such purposes as required by law.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (continued)

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities by contractual maturity at December 31
2017 1s as follows. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities on certain
securities because of call or prepayment provisions,

b

Amortized Far
Cost Value
(In thousands)
Within 1 year $ 74745 § 71,563
After 1 year through 5 years 33,978 33,796
Afier 5 years through 10 years 16,283 16,571
Over 10 years 19,826 19,826

$ 141,832 % 141,756

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, proceeds from sales of securities available
for sale amounted to $68,602,000 and $95.119,000, respectively. Gross realized gains
amounted to $1,540,000 and $2,414,000, respectively, and gross realized losses amounted to
$830,000 and $865,000, respectively.

On February 3, 2017, the Company rece¢ived cash proceeds and stock shares from its
investment in Northeast Retirement Services, Inc. (“NRS) as a result of Community Bank
System, Inc (“CBU™) acquiring NRS. Prior to the acquisition, NRS stock was recorded as a
cost method investment by the Company. CBU shares acquired are recorded as available for
sale securities. The Company recorded a gain of $11,297,000, net of $4,512,000 of related
income tax effects, on the acquisition date which is the fair value of cash and stock received.
An additional $1,268,000, which was recorded as a deferred gain on the acquisition date, is
held m escrow for the benefit of the Company, until final settlement which is expected in
2018. The amount held in escrow represents $665,000 of stock shares and $603,000 of cash.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (continued)

Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2017 and
2016, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have
been in a continuous 1oss position, follows:

Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months
Gross Gross
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
Losses Value Losses Value
(In thousands)
December 31, 2017
Debt securities:
U.S. Government bonds b 136 b 22,823 h 80 5 1492
State and municipal 94 45,609 33 2,527
Corporate:
Financial services 43 7,977 - -
Consumer products 3 3,509 - -
Energy 5 1,046 - -
Other 4 3,042 - -
Total debt securities 285 84,006 113 17.453
Equity securities;
Financial services 148 1,598 - -
Cormmmumications 18 123 - -
Consumer products 73 887 - -
Industrial 67 493 - -
Technology 40 868 - -
Other 23 1,308 - -
Total equity securities 369 5,277 - -
Total securities
available for sak $ 654 $ 89,283 5 113 $ 17453
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)

SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (continued)

Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months
Gross Gross
Utrrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
Losses Value Losses Value
(In thousands)
December 31, 2016
Debt securities:
U.S. Government bonds $ 132 41,857 - $ -
State and municipal 85 29.761 2 327
Corporate:
Financial services 71 15,115 - -
Consumer products 13 7,155 - -
Energy 18 4,120 -
Other 27 9,350 - -
Total debt securities 346 107,358 2 327
ity securitics:
Fmancial services 2 197 - -
Mutual funds 6 345 60 345
Communications 31 512 - -
Industrial - - 14 153
Consumrer products 139 2448 9 50
Technology 5 98 - -
Other 13 214 77 859
Total equity securitics 196 3,814 160 1,407
Total securitics
available for sale 3 542 111,172 162 b 1,734

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly
basis, and more frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. For
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company recorded write-downs of $36,000
and $98,000, respectively, on marketable equity securities that were deemed to be other-than-

temporarily impaired.

At December 31, 2017, 75 debt securities have unrealized losses with aggregate depreciation
of less than 1% from the Company’s amortized cost basis, all of which is deemed to be

temporary.
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Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

LOANS

A summary of the balances of loans follows:

December 31,
2017 2016
(In thousands)
Mortgage loans on real estate:
Residential £ 354,628 $ 315,729
Commercial and multi- family 412,174 341,818
Construction 89,133 55,430
HELOC and second mortgages 65,250 54,486
921,185 767,463
Commercial loans 134,336 107,012
Consumer bans 78,868 49,663
Total loans 1,134,389 924,138
Allowance for loan bosses (7,448) (7,136)
Net deferred loan costs 5,367 3,779
Loans, net $1,132,308 § 920,781

Residential loans are subject to a blanket lien securing FHLB borrowings. See Note 9.

29



Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

LOANS (continued)

Activity in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, and
allocation of the allowance to loan segments at December 31, 2017 and 2016, follows:

Balance at December 31, 2013
Provision fr kian losses
Loans charged-off
Recoveries

Balance at December 31, 2016
Provision (credit) for loan losses
Loans charged-off

Recoveries

Hakmee at December 31, 2017

December 31, 2017

Allowance related to impafed Joans
Albwance retated w non-enpared oans

Totul allowance for Ioan losses

Impaired loans
Non-mpaired loans

Total loans

Decemnber 31, 2016

Allowance related 1o mpared loans
Allowance related to not-impaired loans

Total alkewance B loan ksses

Tmpaired loans
Non-impaired loans

Totad loans

Commercial HELOC
Residential & Mukti- & Second
Real Estate Real Lsiate Construction Moripape Conmerctal  Comsurer Unallocated Total
{In thousands)

§ £227 S 3060 % 510§ 152 % 1072 % 9 3 248 % 6,363
{32) 1,050 (158) 3 (291) 50 ] 50
(125) - - - - 24 - (149}
38 1 3 124 [ - 172
1,108 4,151 352 186 %3 126 kL] 7138
{144} 802 175 7 223 57 (240) 830
(3 (579} - - - 84y - (ab8)
29 19 - 11 3 31l - 98
5 990§ 4393 § 527§ X4 % 1136 § 130§ 68 5 7448
5 200 % 153 % - 8 1 - % - 8 - 3 354
79¢ 4,240 527 203 1,136 130 68 7,04
13 w05 4,393 8 527§ 204§ 1136 § 130§ 68§ 7,448
5 4214 8 7920 % -8 5108 L9 8§ - 8 - § 13477
350414 404,254 9,133 64,999 133,244 78,868 - 1.120.912
$ 354628 § 412,174 $ 39,133 $ 65250 % 134336 § 7BB6B  § - §1,134,389
y 131 § 645 % - 8 PN -3 - 8 - % 78
977 3,506 352 184 205 126 308 6,358
$ 1108 % 4,151 1) 352 5 186 % 505 3 126 § 08 & 7,136
$ 4313 5 4,565 5 19¢ 5 243 5 613 5 - S - s 11,924
3itAle 335,253 55,240 §4,243 106,399 49,663 912,214
$ 315,729 5 341,818 $ 55,430 5 54,486 £ 107,012 5 49,663 s - % 924,138
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)

LOANS (continued)

The following is a summary of information pertaining to impaired loans:

December 31, 2017

Unpaid
Recorded Principal Related
Investment Balance Allowance
(In thousands)
Impaired loans without a valuation allowance:
Mortgage loans on real estate:
Residential $ 1,877 $ 1,964
Commercial and multi- famity 6,301 6,668
HELOC and second mortgages 215 240
Commercial 1,092 1,094
9,485 9,966
Impaired loans with a valuation allowance:
Mortgage loans on real estate:
Residential 2,337 2,376 200
Commercial and multi- farmdly i,6019 1,638 153
HELOC and second mortgages 36 36 1
3,992 4,050 354
Total $ 13,477 § 14016 3 354

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Interest
Average Interest Income
Recorded Income Recognized
Investment Recognized on Cash Basis
(In thousands)
Mortgage loans on real estate:
Residential $ 4,062 £ 196 & 77
Commercial and multi-family 7,277 422 174
Construction 58 - -
HELOC and second mortgages 1,252 25
Commercial 1,007 58 31
Total $ 13,656 $ 701 $ 285
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

L.OANS (continued)
December 31, 2016
Unpaid
Recorded Principal Rehted
Investment Balance Allowance
{In thousands)
Impaired loans without a valuation allowance:
Mortgage loans on real estate:
Residential b 2,438 $ 3,598
Commercial and mutti-family 1,525 1,975
Construction 190 683
HELOC and second mortgages 202 374
Commercal 613 1,785
4,968 8,420
Impaired loans with a valuation allowance:
Mortgage loans on real estate:
Residential 1,875 1,918 131
Commercial and multi-famity 5,040 5,138 645
HELOC and second mortgages 41 41 2
6,956 7,097 778
Total $ 11,924 $ 15,517 b 778

Year Ended December 31, 2016

Interest
Average Interest Income
Recorded Income Recognized
Investment Recognized on Cash Basis
(In thousands)
Mortgage loans on real estate:
Residential $ 4,738 $ 208 S 69
Commercial and multi-family 5,735 302 66
Construction 268 2 -
HELOC and second mortgages 282 7 2
Commercial 1,713 78 -
Total 3 12,736 $ 587 3 137

32



Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary
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LOANS (continued)

The Company has no commitments to advance additional funds in connection with impaired
loans at December 31, 2017,

The following is a summary of past due and non-accrual loans at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

December 31, 2017

Past Due 90
30-5% Days 60-8% Days Past Due 90 Total Days or More Loans on
Pasl Due Past Due Days or Morc Past Due ard Stll Accnumg Non-acerual
(1n thousands)

Mortgage loans on real estate:
Residental $ 445 8 301 % Li49 8 1895 5 -5 1,592
Commercial and mult- Gy - - 168 168 - 3,422
HELOC and sccond mortgages 8 - 104 112 - 104
Commercal - - - - - 553
Consumer 169 34 22 225 - 73
Total S 622 % 335 % 1443 § 2400 % - 3 5,744

December 31, 2016
Past Due 50
30-59 Days 60-89 Days Past Due 90 Total Days or More Loans on
Past Due Past Due Days or More Past Duc and Still Accrumg  Non-accrual
{In thousands)

Maortgage loans on real estate:
Residental 3 489 § 48 3 1,560 § 2097 3§ -8 2,254
Commercial and mukt fimmly 174 522 1,267 1,963 - 2,159
Comstruction - - 190 190 - 190
HELOC ard sccond mortgages 71 - 107 178 - 118
Consumer 102 - - 102 - -
Total 3 836§ 570 % 3,124 § 4530 S - 8 4,721

Troubled debt restructures were not significant in 2017 and 2016.

Credit Quality Information

The Company utilizes a ten-grade internal loan rating system for commercial and multi-family
real estate, construction and commercial loans as follows:

Loans rated 1 — 6 are considered “pass” rated loans with low to average risk.

Loans rated 7 are considered “special mention.” These loans are starting to show signs of
potential weakness and are being closely monitored by management.

Loans rated 8 are considered “substandard” and are inadequately protected by the current net

worth and paying capacity of the obligors and/or the collateral pledged. There is a distinct
possibility that the Company will sustain some loss if the weakness is not corrected.
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LOANS (concluded)

Credit Quality Information (concluded)

Loans rated 9 are considered “doubtful” and have all the weaknesses inherent in those
classified substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or
liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, highly questionable and improbable.

Loans rated 10 are considered uncollectible and of such little value that their continuance as a
loan is not warranted.

On an annual basis, or more often if needed, the Company formally reviews the ratings on
substantially all commercial and multi-family real estate, construction and commercial loans.
Annually, the Company engages an independent third party to review a significant portion of
loans within these segments. Management uses the results of these reviews as part of its
annual review process.

On a monthly basis, the Company reviews the residential real estate, HELOC, second
mortgage, and consumer portfolios for credit quality primarily through the use of delinquency
reports.

The following table presents the Company’s loans by risk rating at December 31, 2017 and
2016.

Commercial
and Multi- family
Real Fstate Commercial Construction
(In thousands)

December 31, 2017
Loansrated 1 - 6 $ 398,513 $ 131,747 S 89133
Loans rated 7 10,239 1,984 -
Loans rated 8 3,422 605 -
Loans rated 9 - - -
Loans rated 10 - - -

$ 412,174 $ 134,336 $ 89,133

December 31, 2016

Loansrated 1 - 6 h] 327,535 $ 104,489 § 55,240
Loans rated 7 11,875 2,028 -
Loans rated 8 2,408 495 190
Loans rated 9 - - -
Loans rated 10 - - -

$ 341,818 $ 107,012 $ 55,430
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LOAN SERVICING

Residential mortgage loans sold and serviced for others are not included in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. The unpaid principal balances of residential mortgage loans
serviced for others totaled $367,362,000 and $343,267,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively. Certain of these loans were sold with recourse provisions., At December 31,
2017 and 2016, the related maximum contingent recourse liability amounted to $89,000, which
is not recorded in the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has transferred a portion of its originated commercial loans to participating
lenders. The amounts transferred have been accounted for as sales and are therefore not
included in the Company’s accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The Company and
participating lenders share ratably in any gains or losses that may result from a borrower’s lack
of compliance with contractual terms of the loan. The Company continues to service the loans
on behalf of the participating lenders and, as such, collects cash payments from the borrowers,
and remits payments to participating lenders. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company
was servicing loans for participants aggregating $21,491,000 and $14,867,000, respectively.

The risks inherent in mortgage servicing rights relate primarily to changes in prepayments that
result from shifts in mortgage interest rates. The balance of capitalized servicing rights,
included in other assets at December 31, 2017 and 2016, was $2,629,000 and $2,626,000,
respectively, and the fair value of these nghts amounted to $2,792,000 and $2,878,000,
respectively. The fair value of servicing rights was determined using a discount rate of 13.3%
and 12.0% at December 31, 2017 and 20186, respectively, and annual prepayment speeds
ranging from 7.4% to 26.3% as of December 31, 2017 and from 7.4% to 18.5% as of
December 31, 2016. Mortgage servicing rights capitalized during the years ended December
31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to $688,000 and $1,203,000, respectively. Mortgage servicing
nights amortization, included in miscellaneous income, during the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016 amounted to $684,000 and $612,000, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, contractually specified servicing fees
included in miscellaneous income amounted to $865,000 and $758,000, respectively.
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PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation and amortization of premises and
equipment follows:

December 31,
2017 2016
(In thousands)
Premmises:
Land $ 4,863 $ 4,863
Buildings 24,534 23,157
Leasehold mprovements 8424 9,723
Construction in progress 745 831
Equipment 11,364 11,512
49930 50,086
Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization (18,671) (18,810)

$ 31,259 $31,276

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
amounted to $2,806,000 and $2,876,000, respectively.

At December 31, 2017, construction in progress represents costs primarily incurred for
construction at a branch location, renovations at two leased locations and for the
installation of solar panels at one location. These projects are expected to be completed
and placed in service in 2018. At December 31, 2017, there were no significant
outstanding commitments related to these projects.
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GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill

The changes in the carrying value of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016 are as follows:

2017 2016
(In thousands)
Balance at beginning of year ¥ 4,494 $ 4,522
Increase in goodwill due to acquisitions 15,082 -
Current period adjustments - (28)
Balance at end of year $ 19,576 $ 4,494

On September 22, 2017, the Bank acquired Priority Funding, LLC (*Priority Funding™), for
$15,000,000. $4,000,000 of the purchase price is deferred and will be paid over a 3-year period
assuming Priority Funding achieves certain annual operating results, as defined in the agreement
between the Bank and Priority Funding.

Priority Funding originates, and subsequently sells, loans to consumers collateralized by mobile
and manufactured homes. Priority Funding conducts business in twelve states, including all six
New England states, while maintaining their corporate headquarters in Northborough,
Massachusetts. This transaction widens the breadth of products the Bank can offer to current
and prospective customers and further diversifies its other income.

The results of Priority Funding’s operattons are included in the Company’s consolidated
statement of net income from the date of acquisition. The Bank determined that the book value
and fair value of Priority Funding’s assets and liabilities were the same as of the date of
acquisition based on management’s estimates using currently available information, This
determination resulted in 100% of the purchase price, $15,000,000, being allocated to, and
defined as, goodwill. Prior to the end of the one year measurement period, if information
becomes available which would indicate adjustments are required, such adjustments will be
included in the purchase price allocation in the reporting period in which the adjustment amounts
are determined. As part of the acquisition, the Bank acquired $7,500,000 of due from bank
accounts, $1,200,000 of other assets and $12,800,000 of accrued expenses and other liabilities.
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GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Other intangible assets

On May 31, 2017, Plimoth Investment Advisors acquired the Trust and Asset Management
division of Savings Institute Bank & Trust (“SI”). No assets were acquired or liabilities
assumed in the transaction. The acquisition resulted in Plimoth adding $74,329,000 of assets
under management. Management determined that the entire purchase price of $645,000 was
attributable to the value of the customer relationships and, as a result, has recorded the entire
purchase price as an intangible asset to be amortized over the estimated lives of the related
relationships.

Information pertaining to intangible assets is as follows:
Gross Net

Carrying Accurnulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount

{In thousands)
December 31, 2017:
SI customer bists, acquired May 31, 2017 $ 645 b 38 $ 607
Insurance agency customer lists, acquired 2003 through 2012 835 589 246
BOFR core deposits, acquired January 1, 2011 1,662 1,454 208

2 3142 % 2,081 § 1,061

December 31, 2016:
Insurance agency customer lists, acquired 2003 through 2012 $ 1635 % 1226 % 409
BOFR core deposits, acquired Jamary 1, 2011 1,662 1,246 416

$ 3297 % 2472 % 825
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GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (concluded)

Other intangible assets (concluded)

At December 31, 2017, estimated amortization expense for identifiable intangible assets for
the next five years and thereafter is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending

December 31,
2018 $ 330
2019 114
2020 114
2021 114
2022 102
Thereafter 287

$ 1,061

Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
$409,000 and $389,000, respectively.
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DEPOSITS

A summary of deposit balances, by type, is as follows:

Demand deposits

NOW

Regular and other savings
Money market deposits

Total non-certificate accounts

Term certificates less than $250,000
Term certificates of $250,000 or more

Total certificate accounts

Total deposits

December 31,
2017 2016
(In thousands)

5 225,048 $190,403
192,273 179,704
206,149 185,289
207,096 194,191
830,566 749,587
235,026 194,665

53,132 47,249
288,158 241914
$1,118,724 $991,501

A summary of term certificate accounts by maturity is as follows:

Within 1 year

Over | year to 2 years
Over 2 years to 3 years
Over 3 years to 4 years
Over 4 years to 5 years

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars m thousands)
$ 165,610 1.05% § 128,994 0.72%
76,212 1.51 67,184 1.14
26,660 1.95 25,467 1.96
14,808 1.90 15,405 1.88
4,868 2.03 4,864 1.92
$ 288,158 1.31% $ 241,914 1.06%
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BORROWINGS

Fixed-rate advances from the FHLB of Boston are as follows:

Weighted Average
Amount Rate
Maturing 2017 2016 2017 2016
(In thousands)

Within 1 year § 28,250 S 16,500 1.16% 3.84%
Over 1 year to 2 years 25,000 20,000 1.45 1.16
Over 2 years to 3 years 25,000 20,000 1.61 1.36
Over 3 years to 4 years 25,000 20,000 2.14 1.52
Over 4 years to 5 years 20,000 20,000 2.22 2.12
Over 5 years 20,000 40,000 2.75 2.48

Amortizing advances

maturing 2022-2033 14,087 1,140 2.11 3.48

$ 157,337 $ 137,640 1.86% 2.11%

The Bank has an available line of credit with the FHLB at an interest rate that adjusts daily. At
December 31, 2017 and 2016, borrowings under the line were limited to $6,996,000. There
were no advances outstanding on the line as of December 31, 2017 and 2016. All borrowings
from the FHLB are secured by a blanket lien on qualified collateral, defined principally as 75%
of the carrying value of first mortgage loans on owner-occupied residential property. See Note
4,

The Bank also has $24,000,000 in available unsecured lines of credit with correspondent banks
at interest rates that adjust daily. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, no advances were
outstanding under these lines of credit.

41



10.

Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUBORDINATED DEBT

On November 28, 2017, the Company issued subordinated debt (the “2017 Debt”) in a private
placement offering in the principal amount of $25,000,000. In connection with the issuance
of the 2017 Debt, the Company incurred $734,000 in issuance costs that were recorded as a
discount to the 2017 Debt and are amortized, using the straight line method, over the life of
the 2017 Debt. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company recorded interest
expense of $147,000, which included $12,000 in non-cash interest expense related to
amortization of issuance costs.

The 2017 Debt accrues interest at 5.875% per annum for the first five years. From and
including December 15, 2022, to the maturity date or early redemption date, the interest rate
shall reset quarterly to an interest rate per annum equal to the then current three-month
LIBOR rate plus 375 basis points. Interest on the 2017 Debt will be payable semi-annually on
June 15 and December 15 of each year through December 15, 2022, and quarterly thereafier
on March 15, June 15, September 15 and December 15 of each year through the maturity date
or early redemption date. The 2017 Debt matures on December 15, 2027, but may be
redeemed on any scheduled interest payment date heginning on December 15, 2022 and
thereafter by the Company, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the 2017 Debt to be redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest to but
excluding the date of redemption.

On July 21, 2016, the Company issued subordinated debt (the “2016 Debt”) in a private
placement offering in the principal amount of $19,750,000. In connection with the issuance
of the 2016 Debt, the Company incurred $527,000 in issuance costs that were recorded as a
discount to the 2016 Debt and are amortized, using the straight line method, over the life of
the 2016 Debt. During the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company recorded
interest expense of $1,389,000 and $614,000, which included $105,000 and $44,000 in non-
cash interest expense related to amortization of issuance costs, respectively.

The 2016 Debt accrues interest at 6.50% per annum for the first five years. From and
ncluding July 30, 2021, to the maturity date or early redemption date, the interest rate shall
reset quarterly to an interest rate per annum equal to the then current three-month LIBOR rate
plus 543.5 basis points. Interest on the 2016 Debt will be payable semi-annually on January
30 and July 30 of each year through July 30, 2021, and quarterly thereafier on January 30,
April 30, July 30, and October 30, of each year through the maturity date or early redemption
date. The 2016 Debt matures on July 30, 2026, but may be redeemed on any scheduled
interest payment date beginning on July 30, 2021 and thereafter by the Company, in whole or
in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2016 Debt to be
redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest to but excluding the date of redemption.

Under the applicable capital rules of the Federal Reserve Bank, the 2017 Debt and 2016 Debt
qualify as Tier 2 capital for the Company subject to certain restrictions.
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11. INCOME TAXES

Allocation of the federal and state income taxes between current and deferred portions is as

follows:

Current tax provision (beneft):
Federal
State

Deferred tax provision:
Federal
Effect of tax rate change
State

Total tax provision

Years Ended December 31,
2017 2016
{In thousands)
$ 3,933 $ (833)

1,178 147
5,111 (686)

486 1,948

731 -

16 707

1,233 2,655

$ 6,344 $ 1,969

The reasons for the differences between the statutory federal income tax provision and the

provision for income taxes are summarized as follows:

Statutory federal tax amount at 34%
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit
Dividends received deduction
Tax exempt nunicipal ncome and increases
in cash surrender value of life msurance
Tax exempt gain on donated stock
Tax credits
Effect of tax rate change
QOther, net

Provision for mcome taxes
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Years Ended December 31,

2017 2016
{In thousands)

$ 5,482 $ 2,335
788 564
(222) (219)
(596) (466)
(105) -
(93) (36)

731 -
359 (209)
$6344 51969
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INCOME TAXES (continued)

The components of the net deferred tax asset are as follows:

December 31,
2017 2016
(In thousands)
Deferred tax assets:

Employee benefit plans $ 1,028 $ 777

Allowance for loan losses 2,094 2,850

Impairment losses on securities availabke for sale 246 323

Defined benefit pension plan - deferred actuarial losses 3,082 3,545

Depreciation and amortization 617 878

Customer relationship intangible 238 368

Capital loss carryovers 60 -

Charitable contribution carryover 124 369

Alernative mmnimum tax credit - 537

Other, net 263 212

7,752 9,859

Deferred tax habilities:

Net unrealized gam on securities available for sale (2,555) (2,017)
Purchase accounting adjustments (71 {(231)
Investment in imited partnerships {296) {409)

Deferred gamn (254) -
Mortgage servicing rights (739) (1,049)
Net deferred Joan costs (1,519) (1,580)
(5,434) (5,286)

Net deferred tax asset $ 2,318 $ 4,573
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INCOME TAXES (continued)

A summary of the change in the net deferred tax asset is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2017 2016
(In thousands)
Balance at begmning of year $ 4,573 $ 8,857
Deferred tax provision (1,233) (2,655)
Changes reflected in other comprehensive mcome (loss):
Defined benefit pension plan 588 411)
Securities available for sale (1,610) (1,218)
Balance at end of year $ 2,318 $ 4,573

The federal income tax reserve for loan losses at the Bank’s base year amounted to
$2,924,000. If any portion of the reserve is used for purposes other than to absorb loan losses,
approximately 150% of the amount actually used (limited to the amount of the reserve) would
be subject to taxation in the year in which used. As the Bank intends to use the reserve only to
absorb loan losses, a deferred tax liability of $822,000 has not been provided.

At December 31, 2017, the Company has federal and state charitable contribution
carryforwards amounting to $429,000 and $476,000, respectively, which expire in varying
amounts in the tax years ending on December 31, 2019 and 2020. At December 31, 2017, the
Company has a capital loss carryover of $288,000, which will expire on December 31, 2022,

The Company’s income tax returns are subject to review and examination by federal and state
taxing authorities. The Company is currently open to audit under the applicable statutes of
limitations by the Internal Revenue Service for the years ended October 31, 2014 through
December 31, 2017. The years open to examination by state taxing authorities vary by
jurisdiction; no years prior to 2014 are open.

On December 22, 2017, the President signed into law the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Act™).
The Act includes a number of changes in existing tax law impacting businesses including,
among other things, a reduction in the corporate income tax rate from 34% to 21%, effective
on January 1, 2018.

45



12,

Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

INCOME TAXES (concluded)

As a result of this rate reduction, the Company revalued its net deferred tax asset as of December
22,2017 resulting in a reduction in the value of the net deferred tax asset of $731,000, which was
recorded as additional income tax expense in the Company’s consolidated statement of net income
in 2017. The Company has developed a reasonable estimate of the other provisions of the Act in
determining the current year income tax provision.

The $731,000 additional income tax expense includes a tax benefit of $22,000 relating to the impact
of the rate change on deferred tax items originally recorded through other comprehensive income.
This accounting treatment effectively stranded $22,000 of deferred tax items in accumulated other
comprehensive income (“AQCT”). In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-02, Income
Statement — Reporting Comprehensive Income {Topic 220}, which allows for a reclassification from
AOQOCI to retained earnings to eliminate the stranded tax effects resulting from the Act. As permitted,
the Company eatly adopted the ASU and recorded a $22,000 decrease in retained earnings and
corresponding increase in AOCI as of December 31, 2017.

OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, there are outstanding commitments which are not reflected in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Loan commitments

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal
course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments
include commitments to extend credit and advance funds on outstanding lines of credit. Such
commitments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of
the amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of the
commitments, The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments as it does
for on-balance-sheet instruments,
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OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Loan commitments (concluded)

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the following financial instruments were outstanding whose

contract amounts represent credit risk:

2017 2016
(In thousands)

Commitments to grant loans $ 60,503 $ 52,597
Unadvanced finds on construction loans 57,217 60,162
Unadvanced funds on home equity lines of credit 51,508 42,601
Unadvanced fimds on commercial bans and

Imes of credit 72,674 43,739
Standby letters of credit 4,453 2,767

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no
violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed
expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. The
commitments for lines of credit may expire without being drawn upon. Therefore, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company
¢valuates each customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. Funds disbursed under
commitments to grant loans, construction loans and home equity lines of credit are primarily
secured by real estate, and commercial loans and lines of credit are generally secured by
business assets.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. These letters of credit are primarily issued to
support borrowing arrangements. Essentially all letters of credit outstanding as of

December 31, 2017 and 2016 have expiration dates within two years. The credit risk involved
in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to
customers. Standby letters of credit are generally collateralized by real estate and business
assets.
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OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (concluded)
Lease commitments

Pursuant to the terms of noncancellable lease agreements in effect at December 31, 2017,
future minimum rent commitments for premises are as follows:

Year Ending
December 31, Amount
(In thousands)

2018 $ 1,015
2019 975
2020 820
2021 682
2022 603
Thereafter 5,685

§ 9,780

The leases for premises contain options to extend for periods up to fifteen years, the cost of
which are not included above.

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to $1,036,000
and $995,000, respectively.

Employment agreements

The Company has entered into employment agreements with several employees of Priority
Funding and Partners that generally provide for a specified minimum annual compensation
and the continuation of benefits from the date of execution of the agreements. The agreements
also include a non-compete clause that prevents these employees from competing with Priority
Funding and Partners for a period of five years after separation of service. The expiration
dates of the Partners agreements are at varying dates through March, 2018. The expiration
dates of the Priority Funding agreements are through September, 2022.

Other contingencies
Various legal claims also arise from time to time in the normal course of business which, in

the opinion of management, will have no material effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.
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MINIMUM REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital
requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital
requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s and Bank’s
financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that
involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as
calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are
also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and
other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding
companies.

The regulations require a minimum ratio of common equity Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets
of 4.5%, a minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital (o risk-weighted assets of 6% and a minimum leverage
ratio of 4% for all banking organizations. Additionally, community banking institutions must
maintain a capital conservation buffer of common equity Tier 1 capital in an amount greater than
2.5% of total risk-weighted assets to avoid being subject to limitations on capital distributions and
discretionary bonuses. The capital conservation buffer and certain deductions from and
adjustments to regulatory capital and risk-weighted assets are being phased in over several vears.
The required minimum conservation buffer is 1.25% as of December 31, 2017 and will increase to
1.875% on January 1, 2018 and 2.5% on January 1, 2019. Management believes that the
Company’s capital levels will remain characterized as “well-capitalized” throughout the phase-in
periods.

As of December 31, 2017, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, an institution must maintain
minimum capital ratios as set forth in the following tables. There are no conditions or ¢vents
since the notification that management believes have changed the Bank’s category.
Management believes, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, that the Company and the Bank
meet all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.
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MINIMUM REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS (concluded)

The Company’s and the Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2017 and

2016 are also presented in the following table.

December 31, 2017:

Total capital to risk-weighted assets:
Corsohdated
Bank

Common equity tier 1 capital to
risk-weighted assets:
Consoldated
Bank

Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets:

Consolidated
Bank

Tier 1 capital to average assets:
Consolidated
Bank

December 31, 2016:

Total capital to risk-weighted assets:
Consolidated
Bank

Common equity tier 1 capital to
risk-weighted assets:
Consolidated
Bank

Tier 1 capital to risk- weighted assets:

Consolidated
Bank

Tier 1 capital to average assets:
Comnsolidated
Bank
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Minitrim
To Be Well
Minirmutn Capitatized Under
Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Requirements Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollars in thousands)
$ 150,175 12.6% $95311 8.0% N/A N/A
146,960 12.3 95,282 8.0 $119,103 10.0%
94,963 8.0 53,613 435 N/A N/A
135,398 11.4 53,596 4.5 77417 6.5
94,963 8.0 71,484 6.0 N/A N/A
135,398 11.4 71,462 6.0 95,282 8.0
94,963 6.8 56,139 40 N/A N/A
135,398 9.7 56,055 4.0 70,069 5.0
$ 1293682 13.0% $ 79,438 B8.0% N/A N/A
125,164 12,6 79,334 3.0 $ 99,168 10.0%
100,599 10.1 44 684 4.5 N/A N/A
115,668 11.7 44626 4.5 64,459 6.5
100,599 101 59,578 6.0 N/A N/A
115,668 11.7 59,501 6.0 79,334 8.0
100,599 8.1 49406 40 N/A N/A
115,668 9.4 49,231 4.0 61,539 5.0
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Defined benefit pension plan

The Company provides basic and supplemental pension benefits for eligible employees
through a defined benefit pension plan. Each employee reaching the age of 21 and having
completed at least 1,000 hours of service in one twelve-month period beginning with such
employee’s date of employment, or any anniversary thereof, automatically becomes a
participant in the retirement plan. All participants with three years of service are fully vested.
Information pertaining to the activity in the plan is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2017 2016
(In thousands)
Change m benefit obkgation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $32,434 § 29,888
Service cost 1,836 1,728
Interest cost 1,314 1,233
Actuarial loss 4,743 475
Benefits paid (813) (890)
Benefit obligation at end of year 39,514 32,434
Change in plan assets:
Farr value of plan assets at beginning of year 31,719 19,750
Actual return on plan assets 4,314 2,859
Employer contribution - 10,000
Benefits paid (813) (890)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 35,220 31,719
Funded status and pension liability at end of year $ 4,294 § 715
Accunmulated benefit obligation § 32,762 $ 26,956

Actuarial assumptions used to determine the projected benefit obligation are as follows:

December 31,
2017 2016
Discount rate 3.75% 4.25%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00%
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
Defined benefit pension plan (continued)

The components of net periodic pension cost are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2017 2016
(In thousands)

Service cost $ 1,836 $ 1,728
Interest cost 1,314 1,233
Expected return on plan assets (2,417} {2,178)
Recognized net actuarial loss 611 675

$ 1,344 $ 1458

Actuarial assumptions used to determine net periodic pension cost are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2017 2016

Dicount rate 4.25% 4.25%
Expected long-term rate of return on pln assets 8.00 8.00
Amnual salary increase 3.00 3.00

The discount rate was selected to reflect the expected long-term rate of return based on
prevailing yields on high quality fixed income investments. The expected long-term rate of
return on plan assets is based on prevailing yields on high quality fixed income investments
increased by a premium of 3% to 5% for equity securities.

The Company, through its Investment Commuittee, selected Plimoth Investment Advisors as
the defined benefit plan’s trustee, investment manager and custodian. An Investment Policy
Statement was approved which is consistent with the provisions of the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act (ERISA). The policy is also consistent with Modern Portfolio Theory
practices, which requires sufficient levels of diversification to promote maximum investment
return per unit of risk taken. The policy is not only designed to diversify market and security
risk, but also inflation risk which can deteriorate the value of capital over time. The policy
sets a strategic asset allocation mix between stocks, bonds and other diversifying assets, along
with allowable ranges within each asset class. The policy also includes permitted and
prohibited asset classes and security types, along with setting minimum asset quality
parameters. The target allocation mix for the portfolio calls for an equity based investment
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
Defined benefit pension plan (continued)

deployment range of 45% to 75% of total portfolio assets. The remainder of the portfolio is
allocated to fixed income investments from 20% to 40% and other investments from 0% to
10%.

In establishing the above referenced Investment Policy, Plimoth Investment Advisors has
worked with the Company to create a level of expectation on behalf of the Company as to the
prudent management of plan assets, monitoring of plan assets/holdings, evaluating
management of the plan and communicating plan activity.

Plimoth Investment Advisors, in its role as Investment Manager, provides input as to the
appropriate asset allocation, time horizon, and risk profile. Utilizing their investment
discipline and security selection processes, Plimoth shall manage the assets in accordance with
the Investment Policy Statement and shall report on investment performance and other matters
impacting the effective management of plan assets. The overall investment return objective
should emphasize both a total return in excess of established benchmarks and lower aggregate
portfolio volatility. This shall be conducted in a manner consistent with all parameters of the
Investment Policy Statement.

The fair value of the Company’s pension plan assets are summarized below:

Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Vake
(In thousands)
December 31, 2017
Corporate bonds $ - $ 3,575 3 - $ 3,575
Equity securttics 18,278 - - 18,278
Mutual fimds 11,886 - - 11,886
Other 1,481 - - 1,481
Total plan assets 3 31,645 $ 3,575 $ - $ 35,220
December 31, 2016
Corporate bonds $ - $ 5,184 $ - $ 5,184
Equity sectrities 16,663 - - 16,663
Mutual finds 0,328 - - 0,328
Other 544 - - 544
Total plan assets $ 26,535 $ 5,184 5 - 3 31,719
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
Defined benefir pension plan {concluded)

The plan assets measured at fair value in Level 1 are based on quoted market prices in an
active exchange market. Plan assets measured at fair value in Level 2 are based on pricing
models that consider standard input factors such as observable market data, benchmark yields,
interest rate volatilities, broker/dealer quotes, credit spreads and new issue data.

Estimated future benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are as
follows:

Plan Year Ending
December 31, Amount

(In thousands)

2018 $ 3,377

2019 2,824

2020 2,410

2021 2,760

2022 : 2,705

2023-2027 10,001

401(k) plan

The Company has a 401(k) savings plan, which provides for voluntary contributions by
participating employees as allowed by federal tax laws. Effective January 1, 2017, under the
terms of the plan, an employee is eligible for the Bank’s Safe Harbor contribution of 3% of the
employee’s compensation after one year of service and a minimum of 1,000 hours. Prior to
2017, the Company matched 50% of an employee’s contribution up to 6% of an employee’s
compensation. Total 401(k)} plan expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
amounted to $711,000 and $578,000, respectively.

Supplemental executive retirement plan

The Company has a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan which provides for certain of the
Company’s executives to receive monthly benefits upon retirement, subject to certain
limitations as set forth in the Plan. The present value of these future benefits is accrued over
the executives’ terms of employment and the expense for the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016 amounted to $503,000 and $519,000, respectively.
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Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (concluded)
Supplemental director retirement plan

The Company has adopted an unfunded Supplemental Director Retirement Plan which
provides for all of the Company’s Directors to receive annual benefits upon retirement, subject
to certain limitations set forth in the Plan.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the projected benefit obligation and accumulated benefit
obligation was $1,382,000 and $1,615,000, respectively.

The discount rates used in determining the projected benefit obligation at December 31, 2017
and 2016 were 3.25% and 3.50%, respectively. The fee inflation assumption used to
determine the projected benefit obligation at December 31, 2017 and 2016 was 2.00%.

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, both employer contributions and benefits paid
amounted to $311,000 and $155,000, respectively, and net periodic retirement costs amounted to
$223,000 and $210,000, respectively. The discount rate used in determining net periodic pension
cost for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was 3.50% and 3.55%, respectively.

Projected benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are as
follows:

Plan Year Ending
December 31, Amount

(In thousands)

2018 b 106

2019 203

2020 203

2021 203

2022 137
2023-2027 568

In connection with the supplemental retirement plans, the Company has purchased life
insurance policies applicable to certain executive officers and directors included in the
aforementioned plans. The policies are reflected on the consolidated balance sheets at cash
surrender value. Increases in cash surrender value are reflected in other income in the
consolidated statements of net income. The Company is the sole owner of these life insurance
policies. The Company has entered into agreements with these executives and directors
whereby the Company will pay to the executives and directors estates or beneficiaries a
portion of the death benefit that the Company will receive as beneficiary of such policies. The
cost of these agreements is being accrued over the respective service periods.
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Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Determination of fair value

The Company uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is best
determined based upon quoted market prices. However, in many instances, there are no
quoted market prices for the Company’s various assets and liabilities. In cases where quoted
market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other
valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used,
including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value
estimates may not be realized in an immediate settiement of the instrument.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating fair value
disclosures for financial and non-financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring
and non-recurring basis:

Securities available for sale — Fair value measurements are obtained from a third-party
pricing service and are not adjusted by management. The securities measured at fair
value in Level 1 are based on quoted market prices in an active exchange market.
Securities measured at fair value in Level 2 are based on pricing models that consider
standard input factors such as observable market data, benchmark yields, interest rate
volatilities, broker/dealer quotes, credit spreads and new issue data. There were no
securities measured at fair value in Level 3.

Impaired loans — Fair values for collateral dependent loans are based on the appraised
value of the underlying collateral considering discounting factors, if deemed appropriate,
and adjusted for selling costs. Current appraisals are obtained when it is determined that
the Company is considering foreclosure. In instances where a current appraisal is not
obtained, the most recent appraisal may be discounted based on management’s historical
knowledge, expertise or changes in market conditions from time of valuation. Given the
significance of management’s judgement in discounting the appraisals, these are
considered level 3 fair value measurements.
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Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below:

December 31, 2017

Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
(In thousands)
Securities available for sale:
Debt securities b - $141,756 S - $141,756
Equity securities 42,434 - - 42,434
Total $ 42,434 $141,756 b - $184,190
December 31, 2016
Total
Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Farr Value
(In thousands)
Securities available for sale:
Debt securities i) - $174,447 h - $174,447
Equity securities 32284 - - 32,284
Total $ 32,284 $174,447 3 - $206,731

There were no liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2017 or

201e.
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Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (concluded)

Assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis

The Company may also be required, from time to time, to measure certain other assets at fair
value on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
These adjustments to fair value usually result from application of lower-of-cost-or-market
accounting or write-downs of individual assets. The following table summarizes the fair value
hierarchy used to determine each adjustment and the carrying value of the related individual
assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016. Total losses represent the amount of losses
recorded during 2017 and 2016 on the assets held at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

Year Ended
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Losses
(In thousands)
Impaired loans $ - $ - $ 1,526 $ 142
Year Ended
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Losses
{In thousands)
Impaired loans $ - 8 - 8 1,895 % 564

There were no liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis at December 31, 2017
or 2016.
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Narragansett Financial Corp. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Concluded)

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events throngh March 22, 2018, which is the date
the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. In February, 2018, the
Bank entered into three $15,000,000 pay-fixed interest rate swap agreements (the
“Swaps™) with a correspondent bank that separately mature in 2021, 2022, and 2023. The
purpose of the swaps is to fix the interest rate the Bank pays on short-term FHLB
borrowings. The Bank has designated these swaps as cash flow hedges and, as such, will
record them at fair value each reporting period with the unrealized gains and losses
recorded in other comprehensive income. The Bank will make fixed-rate interest
payments on the notional amounts at 2.54%, while receiving variable-rate monthly
payments, resetting every quarter, indexed to 3-month Libor.

There were no other subsequent events that require adjustment to or disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements.
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